
 
 
 
 
 
 

BUSINESS AND COMMUNITY SERVICES 
NORTH CLACKAMAS PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT 

Development Services Building 
150 Beavercreek Road, Oregon City, OR 97045 

 

Minutes – Meeting #4 
Concord Property and Library Planning Task Force 

Wednesday, April 3, 2019, 6:30 p.m. 
 

Concord Property 
3811 SE Concord Road 
Oak Grove, OR 97267 

 

APPROVED 
 

 
 
Task Force Members Present: Grover Bornefeld, Ron Campbell, Jean Chapin, Lynn Fisher, Denis Hickey, 

Anna Hoesly, Doug Jones, Jan Lindstrom, Michael Newgard, Mike Schmeer, Kristi Switzer  
 
Members Excused: Gary Bokowski, Mark Elliott, Chaunda Wild 
 
Others Present: Laura Zentner Business and Community Services (BCS) Director; Kathryn Krygier, Project 

Manager; Allison Brown, Facilitator with JLA Public Involvement; Scott Archer, North Clackamas 
Parks and Recreation District (NCPRD) Director; Greg Williams, BCS Deputy Director. 

 
 

 
The meeting began at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Welcome and Introductions 
Kathryn Krygier welcomed the group. Michael Schmeer provided a handout to the Task Force with 
information about the history of the Concord School District and the Concord School site and the 
building. He directed the group to the Oak Lodge History Detectives’ website for more information on the 
history of the school. 
 
Alison Brown explained that there would be one public comment period later in the evening before the 
tour and that the ADA entrance to the building is now open and accessible every meeting. She invited 
everyone to attend the tour of the school scheduled at the end of the meeting and reviewed each item 
on the agenda. The group engaged in a quick icebreaker exercise. 
 
Business Items 
Allison Brown asked the Task Force if there were any edits to the meeting minute drafts for meetings #2 
and #3. Grover Bornefeld stated that on page 4 for Meeting #2 the sentence should say Oak Lodge 
community instead of Oak Grove. He asked about the Vice Chair and the duties that role would play. 
Bornefeld also asked for greater clarity on how the Task Force defines consensus versus majority, 
specifically the line “three-quarters majority for consensus” was misleading. Staff noted they would 
update the minutes to reflect these changes. 
 



Minutes – Meeting #4  Concord Property and Library Planning Task Force 
April 3, 2019 
 

Page 2 of 6 

The group approved the minutes for Meeting #2. Brown asked for any edits for the minutes from Meeting 
#3. 
 
Michael Schmeer asked what was meant by “PMG.” Staff noted that it should read PMT, which stands for 
Project Management Team and comprises the internal staff team. Schmeer noted that his comment 
regarding parking was made in jest and clarified that he was not in favor of demolition of the Concord 
building. 
 
Bornefeld thought that the phrase “The Task Force agrees that the Concord Property should be the first 
choice for the Oak Lodge Library location, if feasible” should be amended after “the first choice” to be 
more specific. He suggested several alternatives, like “for evaluation” or “for vetting” in order to 
communicate that the Task Force agreed only to examine the Concord site as a possible location for the 
library first. Bornefeld worried that was not being effectively communicated after the meeting or in the 
meeting minutes. Staff agreed to make the change with the approval of the Task Force. 
 
Bornefeld also asked about the statement, “Staff answered that the costs would be split evenly between 
the library and NCPRD.” He stated he did not believe Library funds should be used for a seismic evaluation 
on the Concord property because it is only being evaluated as a potential location for the library and it 
has not yet been determined. Staff explained it was referring to another aspect of the conversation, 
specifically the costs of the ongoing Task Force meetings, and agreed to update the verbiage in the 
minutes to reflect that. 
 
Anna Hoesly asked about whether the group was planning on adding another member to the Task Force. 
Denis Hickey drew attention to page 2 where the conversation is noted. Staff agreed to provide an update 
on this process at the current meeting.  Bornefeld stated a concern that the charter stated that a member 
missing four consecutive meetings would be grounds for dismissal and that the longer the Task Force 
waits to fill the vacancies, the further behind that member would be. 
 
Brown asked if the Task Force was comfortable to approve the minutes for Meeting #3 with the 
aforementioned changes. The Task Force agreed. 
 
Kathryn Krygier, Project Manager, reviewed several items of business, including ongoing staff efforts to fill 
the NCPRD at-large vacancy. The vacant NCPRD District Advisory Board (DAB) member position will not be 
filled until the advisory board is reconstituted to ensure it is a more permanent appointment. She 
reminded the group that this would be a lengthy public process and that members would come and go 
before its conclusion. 
 
Finalize Draft Values 
Allison Brown reviewed the draft values developed by the Task Force and drew attention to the several 
edits made in response to comments in the last meeting on March 6.  She explained the next steps for the 
values include bringing them to the community at upcoming events and get feedback and thoughts on 
the values. 
 
Ron Campbell explained some additional comments he had sent to the staff team since the last meeting. 
Campbell stated that throughout the values process, members have discussed both parks and green 
spaces and he believes both should be mentioned in the Values Statements. Campbell would also like to 
include the term “features” when discussing the history of the site and the building. 
 



Minutes – Meeting #4  Concord Property and Library Planning Task Force 
April 3, 2019 
 

Page 3 of 6 

Further, he suggests adding community gardens to the Task Force’s raw meeting notes on values. Brown 
explained she did not want to include it in the raw notes since she would like them to stay true to the 
discussion the Task Force had. 
 
Lynn Fisher stated that the community has been working on developing community values since 2010 
through other projects such as MAP-IT [McLoughlin Area Planning-Implementation Team]. He does not 
like that the group is developing a separate set of values when a lot of this work has already been 
contemplated. Krygier explained that the group is developing values for this project specifically and noted 
that the group will later examine how congruent these values are with those developed by other similar 
groups. 
 
Jean Chapin stated a concern that a lot of the community has not yet been a part of this process and they 
should be incorporated into this exercise. She asked what was meant by bringing the values to the 
community. Krygier responded that there will be a fully developed public participation plan as part of the 
larger project once the consultants have been chosen, but that it will likely include components at public 
outreach events and open houses like surveys, focus groups. 
 
Grover Bornefeld said that there is no one community and that the MAP-IT group’s values have been 
published in a document he would like made available to the Task Force. 
 
Jan Lindstrom stated she felt that the group needed to include a value to reflect economic development.  
 
Campbell reflected that in addition to other groups’ work in the community a great deal of comments 
have been made regarding the Concord School and the site itself. He hopes that all the work to date 
preceding NCPRD ownership will be acknowledged within this process. Staff invited Campbell to submit a 
report similar to that provided by the Oak Lodge History Detectives that provides the Task Force with a 
comprehensive overview of public comments to date. 
 
Doug Jones weighed in on adding a value to reflect economic development. He spoke in support of 
keeping the values statement more general as opposed to specifying a business incubator as a defined 
value. Lindstrom stated they could frame the statement as an acknowledgment that there is economic 
development needed in the area generally and not specifically at the Concord site. 
 
Anna Hoesly said she would like to stay mindful about the impacts of this process on the community, 
especially in light of the housing crisis. Brown reiterated that the group could add verbiage to the 
sustainable practices value that takes into account impacts on the community. 
 
Hickey asked a clarifying question about the word robust in referring to the public process. Brown 
clarified that Hickey was comfortable with the value generally and was just worried about the wording. 
Brown said staff would enter edits and circulate an updated draft via email. She asked the group if they 
were comfortable with the values as a whole and the Task Force agreed. 
 
Project Manager Items: Proposed Process & RFP Components 
Kathryn Krygier went over the high-level schedule first, titled “NCPRD Concord Property, Oak Lodge 
Library & Gladstone Library Planning Processes.” She highlighted that all three projects will be master 
planned in the course of this process and a preferred alternative determined for each property. 
 



Minutes – Meeting #4  Concord Property and Library Planning Task Force 
April 3, 2019 
 

Page 4 of 6 

Jan Lindstrom clarified that the consultants would consider an Oregon City-like combination with an older 
building with a new addition. Krygier confirmed this was a possibility that would be determined during 
the design process. 
 
Lynn Fisher stated he felt the decision has already been made to place the Oak Lodge Library on the 
Concord Property. Krygier disagreed, pointing out the graphic illustrates a “branch off” of the Oak Lodge 
Library process should it be determined to not be placed at the Concord site. 
 
Anna Hoesly said she was curious whether there would be books or articles shared with the Task Force to 
better prepare them for this process. Staff agreed that assigning homework to the group would be a good 
idea. Krygier also stated they would be taking the Task Force on field trips to other relevant sites to help 
get their “head in the project.” 
 
Lindstrom asked about the needs in the community for parks and other recreational resources. Krygier 
explained that the District has done some of that work, but that more work will need to be done specific 
to the Concord property as well as the two additional school sites acquired in March 2018. 
 
Brown asked if the group was ready to move onto reviewing the near-term schedule in the interest of 
time. Krygier went through the proposed near-term schedule, including a recess in May and June. She 
went over several community events occurring over the summer at which she is proposing Task Force 
members attend to interact with the public regarding this project. 
 
Brown asked if there were any comments or questions. Denis Hickey stated that during the months off, 
the Task Force could complete the homework. 
 
Grover Bornefeld said he was concerned that the Task Force does not have a chair or vice chair and staff 
are proposing that elections not take place until October. Krygier explained that staff wanted to let the 
members get to know one another since the chair and vice chair are such important roles. 
 
Kristi Switzer asked if during the summer recess Task Force members would be willing to come together 
to compile some of the public comment on the Concord School and Property that predated NCPRD’s 
ownership. Jan Lindstrom suggested members explore Google for ideas about what other communities 
are doing in terms of renovating public facilities. 
 
Fisher asked what would cause the Task Force to determine Concord is the appropriate site for the Oak 
Lodge Library. He expressed concern regarding how much the Task Force has accomplished thus far in the 
process. Staff apologized for the seeming lack of progress and explained that once the consultant is on 
board the process will advance more quickly. 
 
Bornefeld stated he was unclear about the scope of the RFP [Request for Proposals] and wanted to know 
when the Task Force would be allowed to review it. Staff explained the major components of the RFP and 
stated that the Procurement Division Director at the County has advised staff not to share the document 
directly with the Task Force. Bornefeld said he now had a great concern that staff were directing this 
process. He also complained that staff did not provide the process document in advance of the meeting. 
 
Staff explained the RFP needs to be confidential until it is posted to make it fair to those bidding on the 
project. If introduced to the Task Force, the RFP would become a public document. Fisher suggested that 



Minutes – Meeting #4  Concord Property and Library Planning Task Force 
April 3, 2019 
 

Page 5 of 6 

would be an executive session. Staff stated that a Task Force is not meant to hold executive sessions since 
they are not a decision-making body. 
 
Bornefeld stated staff was dictating the guidelines and that the Task Force was not playing a significant 
enough role. 
 
Anna Hoesly stated she had been involved in many public processes and that they often begin slowly due 
to the extraordinary groundwork and organization required to get started. She thought this process has 
moved at an appropriate pace. She reflected that the major point of contention is surrounding the timing 
of electing the chair and vice chair. 
 
Allison Brown polled the group as to whether to address the topic immediately or move onto the next 
agenda item. There was discussion and the Task Force voted to hold a May meeting to further discuss 
some of the issues raised at this meeting.  As a result, staff moved the Selection Committee agenda item 
to the May meeting agenda for greater discussion. Kristi Switzer asked if the chair and vice chair could be 
selected at the May meeting. 
 
Campbell said he understood the privacy concerns with the RFP document, but that he would like to see 
the list of qualifications that are being solicited within the document. Krygier stated staff would provide a 
list outlining the various areas of expertise the RFP will be requesting from the consultant team to 
Campbell via email. 
 
Bornefeld asked clarifying questions regarding the type of procurement process that Krygier then 
answered. Bornefeld asked whether the Task Force would get to see the RFP document via email in 
advance of it being posted. Staff reiterated that they would not be sharing the RFP document as it would 
then become a public document. Bornefeld stated that once it is posted it could no longer be changed 
and Krygier explained that there are opportunities to change requirements through adding an addendum 
or through negotiations. 
 
Bornefeld requested that staff provide the meeting agenda with enough advanced notice to let the 
members provide feedback on the agenda before it is published. Brown explained that the agenda is 
published one week prior to the meeting per Task Force protocols. Bornefeld said that members do not 
have a chance to weigh in on the agenda items in advance. Brown stated that if members have comments 
on the agenda, the agenda can be updated and reposted in advance of the meeting date. 
 
Lindstrom asked whether the RFP would request the firm have past experience in certain areas, such as 
libraries or parks. Krygier said that they were asking for that. Doug Jones pointed out that the architects 
chosen to design and build the Happy Valley Library had never built a library before that project. 
 
Kristi Switzer stated she felt the issue of the chair and vice chair was unsettled and that she was sensing a 
lot of hostility at the table regarding this issue. Staff agreed to move the election of chair and vice chair to 
the May meeting. Brown polled the group and the Task Force agreed to put the election on the agenda. 
Hickey acknowledged Switzer for bringing up her concerns regarding the chair/vice chair discussion and 
related hostility. 
 
Jean Chapin reported having similar feelings and her desire to schedule another tour to take place not 
during a regularly scheduled meeting. Staff agreed to hold a more thorough tour during daylight hours to 
encompass the entire property. 



Minutes – Meeting #4  Concord Property and Library Planning Task Force 
April 3, 2019 
 

Page 6 of 6 

 
Public Comment 
No public comment. 
 
Closing 
The meeting closed at 8:40 p.m. to accommodate a tour of the Concord building’s interior. 


	Welcome and Introductions
	Business Items
	Finalize Draft Values
	Project Manager Items: Proposed Process & RFP Components
	Public Comment
	Closing

